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11th July 2012
Dear Laura and Nina
Changes to Listed Places of Worship Grant Scheme

Thank you very much for your time the other day, discussing the forthcoming changes to the Listed Places of Worship Grant Scheme (LPWGS).
You explained that the Scheme will be jointly managed by HMT and DCMS, with HMT funding any excess over £17m annually. You are aiming to have the revised Scheme in place by October this year. 
This letter comments on your informal consultation document regarding the changes to the Scheme. We think that most or all of these points were made at the meeting, but please do not hesitate to come back to us if we can provide any further information. As I think we explained at the meeting, we have asked our members for their views, on which we have based our comments, but we have not consulted with them on every detail of our comments. The  Church of England have, of course, been in detailed discussion with you, and the Church in Wales, the Scottish Episcopal Church, the Churches’ Legislation Advisory Service and probably other groups have written to you directly.
Transitional arrangements

For the transitional arrangements, you explained that the building contractor would be responsible for ascertaining whether or not the listed place of worship had applied for listed building consent (or its equivalent) by Budget Day 2012.

The transitional arrangements make it likely that the uptake of the grant for alterations will be relatively slow at first, as the only applicants for the grant will be those who are carrying out work which had been approved after Budget Day. 
LPWGS – general
As you know, the sector has given a warm welcome to the expansion of the LPWGS to refund the extra VAT that places of worship will in future be paying. 

We would make the following general points regarding the proposals for the revised Scheme.

1. As regards alterations, we are happy with your approach of trying to define ‘alterations’ within the LPWGS to match those cases which would at present be subject to zero VAT as alterations.
2. We argued strongly that applicants should not need to split their grant application(s) between alterations and repairs. Only in those cases where a grant is available for alterations but not for repairs (e.g. for alterations to electrical installations) should the applicant need to confirm that the sum being claimed was for an alteration rather than a repair.

3. It would be helpful in the explanatory documentation to have a general statement explaining the main differences between alterations and new works, so that applicants understood that (for example) the fitting of new kitchen furniture within an existing kitchen space is an alteration, not new work. Your passing comment along the lines that ‘new works normally implies new walls’ was helpful. This explanation probably needs to be placed early in the explanatory material. 
4. We would be happy to send a pilot of the new application form and the explanatory material to relevant members for their informal comments, if that would be helpful.

5. We are pleased that you are aiming for monthly payments, as it is clear that this is important to our members. You explained that payments would probably be made in the first half of a calendar month for applications received by the end of the preceding month, though this is not yet fixed.

6. We discussed certain exclusions now applying to the scheme, which were at one time included within it. As we know you appreciate, it would be widely welcomed if at some future date the fees of professional advisers could be included, together with the inclusion of specific items, such as clocks.
7. We explained that there might be some places of worship which are losers from the new arrangements, namely any listed places of worship which are not eligible for the LPWGS. An example might be those buildings cared for by the Norfolk Churches Trust, though we understand they have asked to be included in the LPWGS.
8. We are not aware of any particular types of work which the LPWGS will exclude which are at present subject to zero rate VAT, though this is a technical matter on which we do not have particular expertise.
9. We agree that a routine review of the operation of the scheme will be useful. Several matters might be discussed at such a review, including deciding what should happen to any underspend, looking ahead for unexpected surges in uptake, the possibility of expanding the scheme to include items now excluded, the possible need to cope with emerging forms of ownership such as Building Trusts, and coping with applicant behaviour in 2014 when applicants may fear that the scheme will be withdrawn at the General Election.

10. Finally, although we did not raise this at the meeting, we have subsequently thought that the application form might usefully ask one or two additional questions to help DCMS and HMT better understand how applicants plan their affairs, and thus monitor and forecast likely future uptake. If this is of interest, we would be happy to discuss possible ways of doing this with you.

LPWGS – particular points
11. On page 3 of the consultation, our impression is that many approved alterations will not be stand-alone projects. This is one reason for our making point 2. above.

12. On page 8, first full row, you comment that ‘text will be amended to explain the difference between repairs and alterations’. Although useful in a few cases (e.g. electrical work) we believe that the main need is to explain the difference between new build and alterations/repairs, as this is where the boundary lies for eligibility to claim. (And see point 3. above.)
13. On page 8, it seems that the second bullet point under B and the third bullet point under C may be in conflict.

14. On page 11, item M, we asked whether bats will be regarded as a pest.

15. On page 11, final rows, we asked if roof-alarms for metal theft will be eligible. We explained that one cost effective approach to the huge problem of lead theft is the installation of an alarm which alerts those who care for the church to the presence of people on the roof – indeed, one major insurance company is now giving substantial help with the cost of these. So it would be good if these could be included.

16. On page 14, the final row should probably also refer to alterations (as well as repairs).

17. On page 16, we questioned whether the exclusion of work required under the Disability Discrimination Act is necessary.

18. On page 17, we questioned whether the exclusion of work required for Health and Safety is necessary.

19. On page 20, we suggest that the list of works that will remain zero-rated for VAT because they relate to aids and improved access for disabled people and the relevant HMRC Notices are included early on and prominently in the guidance notes.
With all good wishes

Trevor Cooper

Chair of HRBAlliance, a group within the Heritage Alliance
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web: www.hrballiance.org.uk
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